
 
NOTICE OF WORKSHOP MEETING 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Oak Harbor City Council will hold a Workshop 
Meeting on Wednesday, August 27th, 2014, at 3:00 p.m. to discuss the following agenda 
items. The meeting will be held in the Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive.  
 
DATED this 22nd day of August 2014. 
 
       Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 
 
The City Council may meet informally in workshop sessions (open to the public) to do concentrated 
strategic planning, to review forthcoming programs of the City, receive progress reports on current 
programs or projects, or receive other similar information from the City Administrator, provided that all 
discussions and conclusions thereon shall be informal. Council shall make no disposition of any item at a 
workshop meeting.  Public comment is not normally allowed at workshop meetings, although Council may 
allow, or request participation. 
 

WORKSHOP MEETING 
CITY COUNCIL        

 August 27, 2014                                         AGENDA                                                    3:00 p.m. 
 
Departmental Briefings 
1.  42-Inch Outfall Project - PW  
2.  Engineer Opinion Letter on the Whidbey Avenue Crosswalk - PW 
3.  Scheduling Parliamentary Procedure Workshop - Admin 
 
Pending Agenda Items  
1.  2016 Comprehensive Plan Amendments Public Participation Plan  
     - Dev/Services (9/16) 
2.  Ordinance 1695:  Extension of Impact Fee Reduction – Dev/Services (9/02) 
3.  Ordinance 1692: Extending Medical Marijuana Moratorium – Dev/Services 

(9/02) 
4.  ERCI On-Call Archaeology Contract Amendment No. 3 – Engineering (9/02) 
5.  LED Lighting Conversion Contract (Department of Enterprise Systems) - PW 
6. Water System Plan – Engineering – (9/02 and 9/16) 
 
Emerging Issues 
1. Capital Projects Assessment Exercise – Results of City Council Review 
2. Sale or Exchange of Real Property (Chapter 1.30 OHMC) 
 

1



 

  
City of Oak Harbor 
City Council Workshop Meeting 
August 27, 2014 

 

 Workshop Item 
 
 

 

Pending Agenda Items 

Item 1.  2016 Comprehensive Plan Amendments Public Participation Plan  

Steve Powers, Director of Development Services 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachments 

Attachment A: Draft Resolution 14-27 

 
Attachment B: 2016 Comprehensive Plan Update 

 
 

 
 

 

 
2



  

Bill No.      
Date:    September 16, 2014   
Subject: Public Participation Plan – 2016  
   Comprehensive Plan Update 

 
 
FROM: Steve Powers 
  Development Services Director 
 
INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR 
SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY: 
 
            Scott Dudley, Mayor 
            Larry Cort, City Administrator 
            Doug Merriman, Finance Director 
            Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form  
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
PURPOSE 
This agenda bill presents the Public Participation Plan (PPP) for the 2016 Comprehensive Plan 
Update.  Section 36.70A.140 of the Revised Code of Washington requires local governments to 
establish and broadly communicate to the public a PPP which identifies procedures providing for 
“early and continuous public participation” in the amendment of the Comprehensive Plan and 
development regulations implementing such plan. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The State encourages jurisdictions to adopt a PPP that provides information on how the public 
can get involved with the update process.  The Planning Commission has been the primary body 
that has reviewed the Comprehensive Plan and therefore it would make sense to use the Planning 
Commission meetings to discuss Comprehensive Plan related issues. 
 
The PPP was first introduced to the Planning Commission for review at its October 22, 2013 
meeting.  The PPP was discussed further at the January 23, 2014 Planning Commission meeting. 
Since early and continuous public participation is at the heart of all actions related to the 
Comprehensive Plan, having a PPP adopted early in the process provides an opportunity for the 
Planning Commission and the public to be aware of the ways to be involved in the 2016 
Comprehensive Plan update process.  Oak Harbor’s Municipal Code Chapter 18.15 also 
incorporates several requirements to keep the public informed on actions related to the 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 
DISCUSSION 
The Public Participation Plan (PPP) is attached to this memo for the City Council’s 
review and approval.  The PPP identifies the Planning Commission as the primary body 
to consider the amendments and hold hearings.  Planning Commission meetings are not 
only an effective way to obtain public input but it is also an effective way to disseminate 
information to the public because the meetings are recorded and broadcast on Channel 10 
public access television. Planning Commission meetings are played an average of five 
times a week until the next meeting is recorded and ready for broadcast. The 

City of Oak Harbor 
City Council Agenda Bill 

3



  

rebroadcasting of the Planning Commission meeting is an effective way to keep 
transparency in the decision making process. 
 
A dedicated webpage under the City’s website has been created to provide access to all 
the information that is related to the 2016 Update in one place.  This webpage will have 
links to Planning Commission reports related to the update.  A dedicated email address 
2016update@oakharbor.org has been created for easy public input and comments. 
 
The PPP also identifies Senior Planner Cac Kamak as the primary contact for the update.  
Email and contact information for Cac Kamak is available on the City’s Website and in 
the PPP. 
 
Other means of public input such as open houses, ad hoc committees, workshops, public 
displays, etc. have also been identified as outreach mechanisms.  The decision on which 
mechanism to will be made based on the topic of discussion and the most effective way to gain 
public input on that specific topic. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
The Planning Commission reviewed the PPP on October 22, 2013 and January 23, 2014.  At 
their February 25, 2013 meeting the Commission recommended that the City Council adopt the 
Public Participation Plan as presented. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

• Adopt Resolution No. 14-27 approving Public Participation Plan for the 2016 
Comprehensive Plan update. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

• Resolution No. 14-27 
• Public Participation Plan 

4

mailto:2016update@oakharbor.org


 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-27 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PLAN FOR THE 2016 UPDATE 
TO THE CITY’S COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Growth Management Act (GMA) establishes statewide goals, guidelines and 
procedural requirements to guide the development, coordination and implementation of long-
range plans; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor and other jurisdictions in Island County adopted County 
Wide Planning Policies to provide a general framework for the implementation of GMA in 
Island County; and 
 
WHEREAS, in order to implement the requirements and goals of the GMA and the Countywide 
Planning Policies, the City of Oak Harbor first adopted a Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Code 
in 1995, with appropriate public notice, involvement and environmental review; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 18.15 establishes a public process for 
amending the Comprehensive Plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Code and associated development regulations 
have been amended regularly since adoption with public notice, involvement and environmental 
review; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Washington State Growth Management Act requires Oak Harbor to review and, 
if needed, revise the Comprehensive Plan and development regulations by June 30, 2016, to 
ensure they comply with the requirements of the Growth Management Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Code and other development regulations are being 
reviewed and analyzed to determine needed revisions based on GMA compliance per RCW 
36.70A.130; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public participation program has been developed to inform the public as to how 
they may have an opportunity to participate in the review and suggest needed revisions to the 
Comprehensive Plan and regulations. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, 
WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
The Public Participation Plan for the 2016 Comprehensive Plan Update, a copy of which is 
attached hereto as Attachment A, are hereby approved as the basis for developing amendments 
for the 2016 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
PASSED by the City Council this 16th day of September, 2014. 
 

5



 

      
        CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
        ______________________ 
        Scott Dudley, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________ 
City Attorney 
 

6



 

 

 

  

Public Participation 
Plan 
2016 Comprehensive Plan Update 
 
Section RCW 36.70A.140 of Washington Statutes requires local 
governments to establish and broadly communicate to the public a Public 
Participation Plan which identifies procedures providing for “early and 
continuous public participation” in the amendment of the Comprehensive 
Plan and development regulations implementing such plan. 
 

 

Development Services Department 
City of Oak Harbor 

9/16/2014 
7



Introduction 
Oak Harbor’s comprehensive plan and development regulations need to reviewed periodically 
and updated to reflect current laws, correct errors, input new data, and/or clarify intent.  
Washington State’s Growth Management Act (GMA) requires Oak Harbor to do this review and 
update its comprehensive plan and development regulations by June 2016.   

As part of this update process, Section RCW 36.70A.140 of Washington Statutes requires local 
governments to establish and broadly communicate to the public a Public Participation Plan 
which identifies procedures providing for “early and continuous public participation” in the 
amendment of the Comprehensive Plan and development regulations implementing such plan. 

The city recognizes the importance and necessity of the public involvement process.  The city 
has several boards and commissions that serve in various capacities to foster public input, 
discuss complex issues, further goals and policies of adopted plans and make recommendations 
to the governing body.  The Planning Commission of Oak Harbor serves as the hearing board for 
amendments and updates to the city’s comprehensive plan and development regulations.  The 
Planning Commission makes recommendations to the City Council who ultimately decides on 
the adoption of amendments and updates.  All meetings of the Planning Commission and the 
City Council are open to the public and have dedicated time for public input on their agenda. 

Goals and Objectives 
The goal of the Public Participation Plan is to provide the public with complete information, 
timely public notice, full public access to key decisions, and support early and continuous 
involvement in the process.  It is also the goal of the PPP to provide the public with sufficient 
information so that there is an understanding of the process, and opportunities to review and 
comment on update decisions before they are made. Public is defined broadly to include 
individual citizens, interest groups, trade groups, government agencies, utilities and service 
providers and businesses. 

The city’s current comprehensive plan and development regulations integrates public 
involvement into its decision making process.  OHMC 18.15 outlines the requirements on public 
involvement during annual amendments to the comprehensive plan and OHMC 18.20 provides 
the regulations for public noticing for permit process and other development regulated activities.  
Though the city will abide by all the existing requirements, this Public Participation Plan 
describes the steps that the City of Oak Harbor will take to involve the community in decisions 
regarding the 2016 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update. 

Stakeholders and Public Groups  
The GMA does not exempt any portion of a comprehensive plan or development regulation from 
being subject to review and evaluation.  However, there are some key elements that need to be 

8



reviewed and updated based on changes to laws.  The Department of Commerce has provided a 
checklist to help cities determine the portions of a comprehensive plan that needs to be updated.  
A review of the plan against this checklist provides a scope of the amendments necessary to 
comply with GMA. 

The scope of the update will determine the involvement of key stakeholders and interest groups.  
It is beneficial to identify these groups and involves them early in the process.  

Some of the groups and individuals that could have a potential interest in public input and 
involvement opportunities are identified below.  This list serves as an initial identifier of 
interested groups and is not intended to exclude any groups from the process. 

• Government agencies – state, county, school districts etc. 
• NAS Whidbey 
• Chamber of Commerce and other business groups 
• Media – newspaper 
• Organizations and individuals who have been notified of public hearings for major 

projects, or organizations and individuals who have submitted written comments on other 
major projects. 

• Whidbey Environmental Action Network 
• SICBA 

Information Access 
All reports and documents generated for the 2016 Update to the Comprehensive Plan is available 
to the public for review.  This information can be viewed at Oak Harbor’s city hall or online at 
the city’s website www.oakharbor.org under the Development Services Department/Planning 
Division and under the Plans under progress. 

Outreach Techniques 
As mentioned earlier, the Planning Commission shall serve as the primary body to discuss, 
review and recommend changes to policies and regulations regarding the 2016 update.  The 
Planning Commission meetings will be advertised on the city’s website and in the local 
newspaper.  The agenda for the Planning Commission meeting are noticed in the newspaper two 
week prior to the meeting date.  Reports to the Planning Commission are posted on the city’s 
website five days before the meeting date.  

The City maintains an active involvement in the local government access cable channel.  All 
Planning Commission meeting are recorded and then played back on channel 10 at a minimum 
of 5 times a week till the next meeting.  The rebroadcasting provides the public access to the 
process and information of key decisions during the review process. 

9

http://www.oakharbor.org/


The City’s website www.oakharbor.org has links on the home page to the Planning 
Commission’s agendas and reports.  It lists the date of the next upcoming Planning Commission 
meeting on the calendar.  The website also has an “Oak Harbor News” section on the homepage 
that will also be used to notice of any special meetings associated with the 2016 update.  

The city’s website also contains information on the 2016 update in the Development Services 
section under “Departments” tab on the homepage.  It is under the “Plans under progress” section 
of the Planning Division.  This section of the website will have access to reports, studies, and 
issue papers that are related to the update. 

The Development Services Department maintains a list of interested groups and individuals that 
have expressed interest in Comprehensive Plan related issues since 2005.  Notices of meeting 
related to the 2016 update will be mailed to them. 

During the update process, various other methods of outreach may be used based on the kind of 
input that is most efficient and helpful to the issue under consideration.  This can range from 
open houses, surveys, ad hoc committees, workshops, public displays etc.  

Input Mechanisms 
The City accepts input and comments from the public through a variety of means.  Members of 
the public can visit with planners in the Development Services Department to make comments 
and provide input.  Members of the public can also make comments by calling the Development 
Services Department at 360-279-4510.  Written comments are the most effective way to get on 
record with the comprehensive plan update.  Comments can be faxed to the city at 360-279-4519 
or mailed to  

Development Services Department 
Attn: 2016 Update 

865 SE Barrington Ave 
Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

 

Public comments can also be emailed to a dedicated 2016 update email account – 
2016update@oakharbor.org. 

The public may also make verbal comments or submit written comments at Planning 
Commission meetings and City Council meetings.  There is a dedicated time on the agenda for 
public input on general issues at these meetings.  The Planning Commission and City Council 
always entertain public comments when a particular comprehensive plan item is on the agenda 
for discussion. 

Interested members of the public or a representative of a group, with expressed comments on a 
particular topic may request to serve on committees if one it activated. 

10

http://www.oakharbor.org/
mailto:2016update@oakharbor.org


Contact information 
The City of Oak Harbor believes firmly in the essential role of the public in the 2016 
Comprehensive Plan update process, welcoming any and all comments from citizens or groups 
concerning comprehensive plan policies or development regulations.  Members of the public can 
provide comments to any of the planners in the Development Services Department.  The primary 
contact for the update is provided below. 

Senior Planner, Cac Kamak, AICP. 
Development Services Division 

Attn: 2016 Update 
865 SE Barrington Ave 
Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

 
Email: 2016update@oakharbor.org 

Website: www.oakharbor.org 
 

 

11

mailto:2016update@oakharbor.org


 

  
City of Oak Harbor 
City Council Workshop Meeting 
August 27, 2014 

 

 Workshop Item 
 
 

 

Pending Agenda Items 

Item 2. Ordinance 1695:  Extension of Impact Fee Reduction  

Steve Powers, Director of Development Services 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachments 

Attachment A: Summary of Reduced Impact Fees Collected 

 
Attachment B: Draft Ordinance 1695 

 
 

 
 

 

 
12



City of Oak Harbor 
City Council Agenda Bill 

 
 Bill No.      
 Date: September 2, 2014   
 Subject: Impact Fee Reduction Code  
 
FROM: Steve Powers 
 Development Services Director 
 
INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY: 
    Scott Dudley, Mayor 
    Larry Cort, City Administrator 
    Doug Merriman, Finance Director 
    Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form 
 

PURPOSE 
This agenda bill proposes an ordinance to extend the temporary reduction in impact fees for residential 
development. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION 
Funds Required: N/A 
Appropriation Source: N/A 
 
The current impact fee reduction applies to residential building permits and reduces by fifty percent the 
dollar amount paid for each permit for park and transportation impact fees.  The amount of impact fees 
collected is directly related to the number of building permits issued that are subject to the fees.  
Attachment 1 displays residential building permit activity, and the impact fees collected, for the fourteen 
month period prior to the initiation of the reduced fees until the present time. 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT 
On February 19, 2013, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1643 which reduced by 50% the amount 
of park and transportation impact fees paid by residential development.  This action was taken to 
provide an incentive to residential development.  The adopted ordinance noted the impact the recession 
had on the homebuilding industry and that recovery of that industry is an important part of overall 
economic recovery.  It also established the City Council’s desire to provide incentives to this industry 
through the temporary reduction of impact fees.  The temporary reduction was set to expire on February 
28, 2014.  On February 18, 2014, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1688 which extended the 
sunset date of the reduced impact fees until September 3, 2014. 
 
Building permit activity has remained steady during the period of time the reduced impact fees have 
applied.  Approval of Ordinance No. 1692 (Attachment 2) will extend the reduced impact fees for 
residential development for a period of one year. 

A:\AGENDA PACKET CREATION 2014\082714 Workshop\Pending AI #2, AB Impact fee reduction.docx 
13



City of Oak Harbor 
City Council Agenda Bill 

 
 
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP 
Staff briefed the City Council on this agenda item at the August 27, 2014 workshop. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Approve Ordinance No. 1692. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Summary of Reduced Impact Fees Collected 
2. Ordinance No. 1692 
 

A:\AGENDA PACKET CREATION 2014\082714 Workshop\Pending AI #2, AB Impact fee reduction.docx 
14



A:\AGENDA PACKET CREATION 2014\082714 Workshop\Pending AI #2, attachment a - Reduced Impact Fee Summary

Permits Fees Permits Fees Permits Fees Permits Fees Permits Fees Permits Fees
Jan 2 $3,346.00 4 $6,692.00 2 $1,673.00 2 $1,814.00 4 $3,628.00 2 $907.00
Feb 1 $1,673.00 3 $5,019.00 3 $2,509.50 1 $907.00 3 $2,721.00 3 $1,360.50
March 1 $1,673.00 3 $2,509.50 11 $9,201.50 1 $907.00 3 $1,360.50 11 $4,988.50
April 8 $13,384.00 2 $1,673.00 9 $7,528.50 8 $7,256.00 2 $907.00 9 $4,081.50
May 2 $3,346.00 3 $2,509.50 5 $4,182.50 2 $1,814.00 3 $1,360.50 5 $2,267.50
June 3 $5,019.00 1 $836.50 3 $2,509.50 3 $2,721.00 1 $453.50 3 $1,360.50
July 2 $3,346.00 12 $10,038.00 5 $4,182.50 2 $1,814.00 12 $5,442.00 5 $2,267.50
August 6 $10,038.00 6 $5,019.00 2 $1,673.50 6 $5,442.00 6 $2,721.00 2 $907.00
Sept. 3 $3,916.50 6 $5,019.00 3 $2,721.00 6 $2,721.00
October 10 $16,730.00 4 $3,346.00 10 $9,070.00 4 $1,814.00
Nov. 0 $0.00 1 $836.50 0 $0.00 1 $453.50
Dec. 0 $0.00 8 $6,692.00 0 $0.00 8 $3,628.00
Total 38 $62,471.50 53 $50,190.00 40 $33,460.50 38 $34,466.00 53 $27,210.00 40 $18,140.00

Notes:
1. Park and transportation impact fees per unit reduced by 50% under Ord. No. 1643 and 1688.
2. Reduced park fee = $836.50 per single-family home.
3. Reduced transportation fee = $453.50 per single-family home.
4. Reduced impact fees applied from March 1, 2013 through present date (shown in grey shaded areas). 
    Collected fees for that time are $71,939.50 for parks and $39.001.00 for transportation. 

Summary of Reduced Impact Fees Collected

Park Impact Fees Transportation Impact Fees
2012 2013 2014 2012 2013 2014

Month

15



 

ORDINANCE NO. 1695 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR EXTENDING THE REDUCED PARK 
AND TRANSPORTATION IMPACT FEES FOR RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT AND 
AMENDING SECTION SEVEN (7) OF ORDINANCE NO. 1643 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor adopted Ordinance No. 1643 on 
February 19, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, that ordinance reduced by fifty percent (50%) the amount of park and transportation 
impact fees paid by residential development for the period of time from March 1, 2013 until 
February 28, 2014; and  
 
WHEREAS, on February 18, 2014 the City Council extended the sunset date of that ordinance 
until September 3, 2014 with the adoption of Ordinance No. 1688; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council believes an extension of this incentive is necessary to further 
support the rebounding of the homebuilding industry. 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as follows: 
 
Section One.  Section seven (7) of Ordinance No. 1643 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
This ordinance shall be in full force and effect on September 3, 2014.  The portions of the 
ordinance that reduce the amount of impact fees collected shall remain in effect until September 
3, 2015. 
 
Section Two.  All other provisions of Ordinance No. 1643 shall remain in effect.   
 
Section Three.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person 
or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the 
provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 
 
Section Four.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect on September 3, 
2014.   
 
PASSED by the City Council this 2nd day of September 2014. 

ORDINANCE NO. 1695 – Page 1 of 2 
 
 

16



 

 
       CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
       _______________________________ 
       SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 
       
Attest:       Approved as to Form: 
 
________________________   _______________________________ 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk    Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
Date of Publication:       
Effective Date:      
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1695 – Page 2 of 2 
 
 

17



 

  
City of Oak Harbor 
City Council Workshop Meeting 
August 27, 2014 

 

 Workshop Item 
 
 

 

Pending Agenda Items 

Item 4. ERCI On-Call Archaeology Professional Services Contract 
Amendment No. 3 

Joe Stowell, City Engineer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachments 

Attachment A: Professional Services Contract executed 10/16/2012 

 
Attachment B: Professional Services Contract Amendment No. 1 

 
Attachment C: Professional Services Contract Amendment No. 2 

 
Attachment D: Professional Services Contract – Draft Amendment No. 3 

 
Attachment E: Scope of Services 

 
 

 

 
18



 
 Bill No.       
 Date: September 2, 2014   
 Subject: ERCI Professional Services  

Agreement  – On-Call   
Archaeology – Amendment 3   

 
FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director 
 Joe Stowell, City Engineer 
  
INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY: 
 
            Scott Dudley, Mayor 
            Larry Cort, City Administrator 
            Doug Merriman, Finance Director 
            Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form 
 
 
PURPOSE  
The purpose of this agenda bill is to authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment Number 3 to the 
professional services agreement with Equinox Research and Consulting International (ERCI) for 
on-call archaeology services.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION 
Funds Required:   $60,000.00    
Appropriation Source:  Various    
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT 
Over the past two years, the City of Oak Harbor has implemented several new policies to help 
care for our valued cultural resources.  The new policies can be broken into training, evaluation 
and monitoring.  The first task is to train our staff in ways to better identify cultural material.  In 
order to do this, we have implemented a regular training schedule for city employees and have 
begun the process of extending this training to contractors and the public.  The second task is to 
evaluate projects for cultural resources.  Since public works projects often require excavation, we 
have implemented a program where all public works excavations are cleared with the City 
Engineer.  Projects in sensitive areas are reviewed by ERCI to determine if extra measures are 
necessary.  If the area is of greater concern, the excavation is monitored by an archaeologist or 
recommended for a permit from DAHP.  
 
In October 2012, the Mayor signed an initial contract with ERCI to provide these services on a 
time and materials basis, not to exceed $9,944.  On September 3, 2013, Amendment Number 1 
was approved by City Council which increased the contract to $50,999.00.  Amendment Number 
2 extended the contract duration, but didn’t increase the budget.  Currently, less than $xxxx 
remains in the budget with ERCI for On-Call Archaeology.  Amendment Number 3 is intended 
to provide funding for another 12 months. 
 
Over the past year, we have averaged approximately $5,000.00 per month in on-call 

 

City of Oak Harbor 
City Council Agenda Bill 
 

September 2, 2014 – ERCI Professional Services Contract Amendment 3 
Page 1 of 3 

19



 
archaeological services.  A similar effort is expected in the year to come.  As such, we are 
requesting an additional $60,000.00 in funding. 
 
The scope of services that we expect ERCI to continue providing is as follows. 
 

• Assist in refining the Unanticipated Discoveries Protocol (UPD) for the City;   
• Carry out on-going staff trainings to help manage cultural resources and use the UDP; 
• Provide emergency on-call services to City departments and provide the associated reporting for 

these services; this includes archeological site inventory forms and Historic Property Inventory 
Forms; 

• Assist in the coordination of identifying human remains; 
• Establish a cultural resource shape file of: 

o all on call location site visits  
o cultural report results  
o previously recorded archaeological site boundaries 

• Review public works projects for archaeological requirements; 
• Continue to help develop a Citywide Cultural Resource Management Plan which included a 

useable management map; 
• Provide feedback to Development Services  on specific questions regarding cultural resources; 
• Provide advice on land use applications that are submitted to the City; 
• Public Outreach, potentially including; 

• Public Open Houses focused on Archaeology; 
• Review of federal and state law surrounding cultural resources; 
• Presentation of historic and prehistoric cultural resources discovered through their work in 

Oak Harbor. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Contract Amendment Number 3 to the Professional Services 
Agreement with Equinox Research and Consulting International (ERCI) in the amount of 
$60,000.00.  
 
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP 
This item was discussed at the August 27, 2014 City Council Workshop. 
 
PREVIOUS CITY COUNCIL ACTIONS 
September 3, 2013 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 1 to the 

Professional Services Agreement with Equinox Research and Consulting International 
(ERCI) for on-call archaeological services and increasing the not to exceed contract 
amount by $41,055.00, from $9,944 to $50,999.00 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment Number 3 to the Professional Services Agreement with 
Equinox Research and Consulting International (ERCI) for on-call archaeological services and 
increasing the not to exceed contract amount by $60,000.00, from $50,999.00 to $110,999.00 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Professional Services Contract – October 16, 2012 
Professional Services Contract Amendment No. 1 - Executed 

September 2, 2014 – ERCI Professional Services Contract Amendment 3 
Page 2 of 3 

20



 
Professional Services Contract Amendment No. 2 - Executed 
Professional Services Contract Amendment No. 3 
Scope of Services 
 

September 2, 2014 – ERCI Professional Services Contract Amendment 3 
Page 3 of 3 

21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



 
41507 South Skagit Hwy Concrete, WA 98237 Tel.360-826-4930 Fax. 360-826-4830 www.equinoxerci.com  

 
August 21, 2013 

 

 

Joe Stowell 

City of Oak Harbor Public Works 

1400 NE 16
th
 Avenue 

Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

 

Re: On-call services-Archaeologist-City of Oak Harbor 

 

Dear Mr. Stowell: 

 

Thank you for the considering Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) for 

your cultural resource management needs. ERCI provides a full service cultural resource 

management program and we look forward to providing you timely and professional fieldwork 

and reporting.  

 

Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA), SEPA and Executive Order 05-05 

requires agencies to consider the effects of their actions on historic properties and to consult with 

others in carrying out historic preservation activities. The State of Washington also has a series of 

RCWs and associated WACs concerning cultural resources that we are guided by.  In providing 

cultural resource management services for clients, Equinox Research and Consulting 

International Inc. (ERCI) works in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations. 

 

We are providing this scope and budget for on-call archaeological services for 4 months 

September 1 – December 31, 2013.  This is a total of 17.5 weeks. 

 

Scope 

 

 Assist in refining the Unanticipated Discoveries Protocol (UPD) for the City   

 Carry out regular staff trainings to help manage cultural resources and utilize the UDP 

 Provide emergency on-call services to the City and provide the associated reporting for 

these services; this includes archeological site inventory forms, but not Historic Property 

Inventory Forms. 

 Assist in developing a Citywide Cultural Resources Management Plan with 

recommendations toward a long term Historic Preservation Program 

 Maintain a GIS layer and assist in developing management protocol and tools for each of 

the public works departments. 

 Assist in preparing Outreach programs for Historic Preservation 

 Assisting in the identification and coordination of human remains. 

 

Qualifications: 

 Experience working in Puget Sound and on projects associated with public works 

systems and infrastructure.  

35



City of Oak On-Call Services       2 

Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) 

 Principal investigator meets the Secretary of Interior’s professional qualification 

standards for archaeology 

 Expertise on prehistoric and historic archaeology of Western Washington 

 Experience in Executive Order 05-05 and NHPA Section 106 work and in working with 

additional state laws related to historic preservation and human remains. 

 Positive working relationship with federally recognized Tribes in and adjacent to the 

project area and experience in tribal consultation. 

 Experience in processes that balance competing resource needs 

 Strong record of completing work on time within budget 

 

 

The team at ERCI is comprised of individuals with strong personal research specialties who pride 

themselves on efficiency, performance and integrity. We provide the highest quality product in a 

timely fashion. Please check out our web site for additional details www.equinoxerci.com 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide excellent heritage planning services for the City of Oak 

Harbor. 

 

Regards, 

 
Kelly R. Bush 

Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) 

 

Description Units Rate/HR  Sub Total  

 Orientations/trainings, meetings, coordination 70.00 97.75                  6,842.50  

Archival background research, this includes historic and 

land use research 

35.00 
97.75 

3,421.25 

Determine eligibility of identified historic properties for 

listing in the National Register of Historic Places.  
10.00 97.75 977.50 

Consider the effects of Project alternatives on all 

cultural resources and provide recommendations about 

how to avoid, minimize, or mitigate the adverse effect. 
12.00 97.75 1,173.00 

Consultation with SHPO and agencies 8.00 97.75 782.00 

Field  Work including: site visits, monitoring and photo 

documentation 

145.00 
97.75 

14,173.75 

Document control, transcriptions, site forms 50.00 97.75 4,887.50 

Report writing 60.00 97.75 5,865.00 

Graphics, layout 30.00 97.75 2,932.50 

SUB TOTAL     41,055.00 

GRAND TOTAL   
  

         

41,055.00  
 

 

 

36

http://www.equinoxerci.com/


37



 
Professional  Services Agreement 
Amendment Number ____3______ 
 

Organization and Address 
 
City of  Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA 98239 
 
Phone: 360-279-4539 

Original Agreement Title: 
 
Professional Services Agreement with Equinox 
Research and Consulting International 
Project Number: 
 
ENG-13-10 

Execution Date 
 
10/16/2012 

Completion Date (Prior) 
 
12/31/2014 

Project Title 
 
Archaeology On-Call Services 
  

New Maximum Amount Payable 
 
$110,999.00 
 

Description of Work 
 
Provide on-call archaeological services 
 
 
The City of Oak Harbor desires to supplement the agreement entered into with Equinox 
Research and Consulting International and executed on    10/16/2013    and identified as 
 Professional Services Agreement with Equinox Research and Consulting International. 
 
All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this 
supplement. 
 
The changes to the agreement are described as follows: 
 
SCOPE OF WORK is hereby amended to add the following: 
  NO CHANGE. ________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SCOPE OF WORK is hereby changed and supplemented with the following: 
 NO CHANGE. _________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Amendment No. 3 8/6/2014 Page 1 of 3 

38



 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Amendment No. 3 8/6/2014 Page 2 of 3 

39



 
PROJECT COMPLETION DATE AMENDED TO: June 30, 2014 _____________________ 
 
PAYMENT shall be amended as follows:  
 Amendment reflects an increase in time and cost necessary to provide on-call archaeological 
services for the City of Oak Harbor.   The maximum amount payable under the   
 contract is increased by $60,000.00, from $50,999.00 to $110,999.00.     
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Payment shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions described in the original 
contract.  
 
If you concur with this amendment and agree to the changes as stated above, please sign in the 
appropriate spaces and return to this office for final action. 
 
 
By:         By:        
 
             
Consultant Signature     Approving Authority Signature 
 
             
         Date 

 
Amendment No. 3 8/6/2014 Page 3 of 3 

40



 
41507 South Skagit Hwy Concrete, WA 98237 Tel.360-826-4930 Fax. 360-826-4830 www.equinoxerci.com  

 
 
Scope 
 

• Assist in refining the Unanticipated Discoveries Protocol (UPD) for the City   
• Carry out on-going staff trainings to help manage cultural resources and use the UDP 
• Provide emergency on-call services to City departments and provide the associated 

reporting for these services; this includes archeological site inventory forms and Historic 
Property Inventory Forms. 

• Assisting in the coordination of identifying human remains. 
• Establish a cultural resource shape file of: 

o all on call location site visits  
o cultural report results  
o previously recorded archaeological site boundaries 

• Review public works projects for archaeological requirements 
• Continue to help develop a Citywide Cultural Resource Management Plan which 

included a useable management map. 
• Provide feedback to Development Services the Planning Department on specific 

questions regarding cultural resources. 
 
Additional Scope tasks could include: 

• Provide advice on Review of land use permit applications that are submitted tocome into 
the City Permitting department. 

• Public Outreach, potentially including; 
• Public Open Houses focused on Archaeology; 
• Review of federal and state law surrounding cultural resources; 
• Presentation of historic and prehistoric cultural resources discovered through their 

work in Oak Harbor. 
• Archaeology nights like at the Seniors Center 

• Developing outreach opportunities for the community of Oak Harbor Specifically on 
going reporting at Council Meetings – provide a 3 minutes report with updates on 
Archaeology and Archaeological Outreach in and around Oak Harbor. Topics for this 3 
minutes of archaeology could include: 

o A review of Agencies that have required cultural review as part of their 
permitting 

o A segment of history or prehistory that has come out of our research – this would 
be 3 minutes of slides and a story 

o Status of Archaeology on any given current project 
o Status of trainings. 
o Give a 3 minute version of the UDP training 
o Timeline of the law in Washington state so people can see this isn’t new 

 
Elements that would be in every 3 minute talk would b: 

• a contact number and email for ERCI and The City. 
• At least 3 good pictures. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Comment [JS1]: I agree with all of this, I’m just 
not sure I would like it attached to the agenda bill.  
All very good ideas. 

41

http://www.equinoxerci.com/


• At least one other announcement about archaeology around the state so that Oak Harbor 
doesn’t feel so singled out. 

• Mentioning one new success 
• Giving the numbers of how many projects have been run through the review so private 

property owners don’t feel like they are the only ones bearing the brunt of new 
regulations. 
 

 

City of Oak Continued  On-Call Services       2 
Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) 

42



 

  
City of Oak Harbor 
City Council Workshop Meeting 
August 27, 2014 

 

 Workshop Item 
 
 

 

Emerging Issues 

Item 2.  Sale or Exchange of Real Property (Chapter 1.30 of OHMC) 

Dr. Larry Cort, City Administrator 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachments 

Attachment A: OHMC Chapter 1.30 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
43



44



 

  City of Oak Harbor 
August 27, 2014 

 

 Report 
 
 

 

Calls for Service – Police Department 

July  2014 

Ed Green, Chief of Police 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachments 

Attachment A: Total Incident Report by Nature of Incident, July 2014 

 
Attachment B: Arrests by Nature of Incident, July 2014 

 
 

 
 

 

 
45



46



47



48


	August 27, 2014 Workshop Notice & Agenda
	Pending Agenda Item No. 1 Cover Sheet
	Public Participation Plan - 2016 Comprehensive Plan Update Agenda Bill
	Draft Resolution 14-27
	Public Participation Plan - 2016 Comprehensive Plan Update

	Pending Agenda Item No. 2 Cover Sheet
	Impact Fee Reduction Code Agenda Bill
	Summary of Reduced Impact Fees Collected
	Draft Ordinance 1695

	Pending Agenda Item No. 4 Cover Sheet
	ERCI Professional Services Agreement On-Call Archaeology Amendment No. 3 - Agenda Bill
	2012 Professional Services Agreement with ERCI
	Amendment No. 1
	Amendment No. 2
	Draft Amendment No. 3
	Scope of Work

	Emerging Issues No. 2 Cover Sheet
	OHMC 1.30 Sale or Exchange of Real Property

	Calls for Service - Police Department - Cover Sheet
	Total Incident Reports by Nature of Incident and Arrest





